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Investors Real Estate Trust

1400 31st Ave SW, Suite 60

PO Box 1988

Minot, ND 58702-1988
August 6, 2012

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

It is a pleasure to invite you to attend our 42nd Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Tuesday, September 18,
2012, at 7:00 p.m., CDT, at the Grand International, 1505 North Broadway, Minot, North Dakota.

At the annual meeting, you will be asked to vote on the following items: (i) the election as trustees of the Company of

the nine (9) nominees named in this Proxy Statement, each for a term of one year and until their successors are duly

elected and qualified; (ii) an advisory vote on executive compensation; (iii) the ratification of Grant Thornton LLP as

the Company’s independent auditors for the current fiscal year; and (iv) such other matters as may properly come
before the annual meeting or any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof. The annual meeting will also feature a

report on the operations of your Company, followed by a question and answer period. After the annual meeting, you

will have the opportunity to speak informally with the trustees and officers of the Company.

The Board of Trustees recommends that you vote to (i) elect the nine (9) trustee nominees named in this Proxy
Statement; (ii) approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers, as
disclosed in this Proxy Statement pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission; and (iii) ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as the Company’s independent auditors.

Information about the annual meeting and the formal business to be acted on by the shareholders is included in the
Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement that follow. Our 2012 proxy materials and 2012 Annual Report are
available online at www.proxyvote.com.

On or about August 6, 2012, we mailed our shareholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials
containing instructions on how to access our 2012 Proxy Statement and 2012 Annual Report and vote online. The
notice also included instructions on how to receive a paper copy of the annual meeting materials, including the notice
of annual meeting, proxy statement and proxy card. Other shareholders, in accordance with their prior requests, have
received e-mail notification of how to access our proxy materials and vote via the Internet, or have been mailed,
beginning August 6, 2012, paper copies of our proxy materials and a proxy card or voting form. If you received your
annual meeting materials via e-mail, the e-mail contained voting instructions and links to the annual report and the
proxy statement on the Internet, both of which are available at www.proxyvote.com. If you received your annual
meeting materials by mail, the notice of annual meeting, proxy statement and proxy card from our Board of Trustees
were enclosed.

Please refer to the proxy statement for detailed information on each of the proposals and the annual meeting. Your
shareholder vote is important, and I encourage you to vote promptly. I look forward to seeing you at the annual
meeting.

Sincerely,
Investors Real Estate Trust
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Timothy P. Mihalick
President and Chief Executive Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To Be Held on Tuesday, September 18, 2012, at 7:00 p.m. (CDT)

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Investors Real Estate Trust (the “Company’) will be
held on Tuesday, September 18, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., CDT, at the Grand International, 1505 North Broadway, Minot,
North Dakota, 58703, for the following purposes:

1. To elect as trustees of the Company the nine (9) nominees named in this proxy statement, each for a term of one
year expiring at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified,

2. To hold an advisory vote on executive compensation (the “say on pay vote”),
3. To ratify Grant Thornton LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for the current fiscal year, and

4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment(s) or
postponement(s) thereof.

These items are described in the proxy statement, which is part of this notice. We have not received notice of other
matters that may properly be presented at the annual meeting.

The Company’s Board of Trustees has fixed the close of business on July 20, 2012, as the record date for determining
the shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the annual meeting or any adjournment(s) or
postponement(s) thereof.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Investors Real Estate Trust 2012 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders to be held on September 18, 2012: The 2012 proxy materials and 2012 Annual Report are
available at www.proxyvote.com

By Order of the Board of Trustees,

Karin M. Wentz
Secretary and Associate General Counsel

Minot, North Dakota
August 6, 2012

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the Annual Meeting. You can vote your shares by one of
the following methods: vote by proxy over the Internet, by telephone or, if you received your annual meeting
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materials by mail, by using the instructions on your proxy card. Any proxy may be revoked in the manner described
in the accompanying proxy statement at any time prior to its exercise at the Annual Meeting.
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Investors Real Estate Trust

1400 31st Avenue SW, Suite 60
PO Box 1988
Minot, ND 58702-1988
Telephone: (701) 837-4738
Fax: (701) 838-7785

PROXY STATEMENT
August 6, 2012

Proxies are solicited by the Board of Trustees (the “Board” or “Board of Trustees”) of Investors Real Estate Trust, a North
Dakota Real Estate Investment Trust (the “Company”), for use at the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held on Tuesday, September 18, 2012, at 7:00 p.m. CDT. The Annual Meeting
will be held at the Grand International, 1505 North Broadway, Minot, North Dakota, 58703. Only the holders of
record of the Company’s common shares of beneficial interest, no par value (“Shares” or “common shares”), at the close of
business on July 20, 2012 (the “Record Date”), are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. The holders of the Company’s
8.25% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, no par value (the ‘“Preferred Shares”),
are not entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the close of business on July 20, 2012, the Company had
91,722,823 Shares issued and outstanding, each of which is entitled to one vote at the Annual Meeting. Thirty-three

and one-third percent (33-1/3%) of the Shares outstanding on the Record Date must be present in person or by proxy

to have a quorum.

The cost of soliciting proxies will be borne by the Company. Trustees, officers and employees of the Company may,
without additional compensation, solicit proxies by mail, internet, personal interview, telephone and/or telecopy.

The Company is furnishing proxy materials to its shareholders primarily via the Internet. On or about August 6, 2012,

we mailed to our shareholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials containing instructions on how to

access the Company’s proxy materials, including the 2012 Proxy Statement and the 2012 Annual Report. The Notice
of Internet Availability also instructs shareholders on how to access the proxy card to be able to vote through the

Internet or by telephone. Certain shareholders, in accordance with their prior requests or by decision of the Company,

have received e-mail notification of how to access the proxy materials and vote via the Internet, or, beginning August

6, 2012, have been mailed paper copies of the Company’s proxy materials and a proxy card or voting form.

Internet distribution of the Company’s proxy materials is designed to expedite receipt by shareholders, lower the cost
of the annual meeting, and conserve natural resources. However, if you would prefer to receive printed proxy
materials, please follow the instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability. If you have previously elected
to receive the Company’s proxy materials electronically, you will continue to receive these materials via

e-mail unless you elect otherwise.

The Company will request banks, brokerage houses and other institutions, nominees or fiduciaries to forward the
soliciting material to the beneficial owners of Shares and to obtain authorization for the execution of proxies. The
Company will, upon request, reimburse banks, brokerage houses and other institutions, nominees and fiduciaries for
their reasonable expenses in forwarding proxy materials to the beneficial owners. If a shareholder is a participant in
the Company’s Distribution Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (the “Plan”), the proxy represents a voting instruction

11
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as to the number of full Shares in such shareholder’s Plan account, as well as any Shares held directly by the
shareholder.

You may vote your Shares at the Annual Meeting in person. If you cannot attend the Annual Meeting in person, or
you wish to have your shares voted by proxy even if you do attend the Annual Meeting, you may vote by duly
authorized proxy on the Internet, by telephone or by mail. In order to vote on the Internet, you must first go to

Table of Contents
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www.proxyvote.com, have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, proxy card or voting instruction
form in hand and follow the instructions.

In order to vote by telephone, you must call 1-800-690-6903, have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy
Materials, proxy card or voting instruction form in hand and follow the instructions.

To vote by mail using a proxy card, you must sign, date and mail the proxy card in the envelope provided. You may
request a proxy card from us as instructed in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

To vote in person, you must attend the Annual Meeting and obtain and submit a ballot, which will be provided at the
meeting.

All properly executed or authorized proxies delivered pursuant to this solicitation and not revoked will be voted at the

Annual Meeting as specified in such proxies. If no vote is specified on a proxy, the Shares represented by such proxy

will be voted FOR the election of each of the nine (9) nominees for trustee, FOR the advisory approval of named

executive officer compensation, and FOR the ratification of the selection of Grant Thornton LLP as the Company’s
independent auditors. If other matters are properly presented for voting at the Annual Meeting, the persons named as

proxies will vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment. We have not received notice of other matters

that may properly be presented for voting at the Annual Meeting.

Shares entitled to vote but which, at the direction of the beneficial owner, are not voted on one or more matters
(“abstentions”) will be counted for the purpose of determining whether there is a quorum for the transaction of business
at the 2012 Annual Meeting. Shares held by brokers who do not have discretionary authority to vote on a particular
matter and who have not received voting instructions from their customers (“broker non-votes”) are counted as present
for the purpose of determining the existence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting.

In the past, in the election of trustees, if you held your common shares in street name in a bank or brokerage account
and you did not indicate how you wanted your Shares voted, your bank or broker was allowed to vote those Shares on
your behalf as they felt appropriate. However, changes in regulation have taken away the ability of your bank or
broker to vote your uninstructed Shares in the election of trustees and certain other matters on a discretionary
basis. Thus, if you hold your Shares in street name and you do not instruct your bank or broker how to vote in the
election of trustees (Proposal 1) and on the advisory vote on executive compensation (Proposal 2), no votes will be
cast on your behalf for those two proposals. Your bank or broker will, however, continue to have discretion to vote
any uninstructed Shares on the ratification of the appointment of the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm (Proposal 3). Accordingly, if you hold your Shares in street name in a bank or brokerage account, it
is critical that you cast your vote if you want it to count in the election of trustees and in the advisory vote on
executive compensation.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the shareholders present in person or by proxy at
the Annual Meeting, provided a quorum is present, is required to elect each of the nine (9) nominees for trustee
(Proposal 1), to approve (on an advisory basis) the compensation of the named executive officers (Proposal 2), and to
ratify the selection of Grant Thornton LLP as the Company’s independent auditors (Proposal 3). Both broker
non-votes and abstentions are counted in determining whether the shareholders have approved these proposals. As
such, if brokers and banks vote on their clients’ behalf, such votes will affect the proposals as voted (either for or
against). If brokers and banks do not vote on their clients’ behalf, such broker non-votes will have the effect of a vote
against the proposals. Abstentions also have the effect of a vote against the proposals.

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time before its use at the
Annual Meeting by delivering to Karin M. Wentz, the Secretary and Associate General Counsel of the Company, a

13
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written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date, by authorizing a subsequent proxy by
telephone or through the designated Internet site, or by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. If your
shares are held on your behalf by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must contact them to receive instructions on
how to revoke your proxy.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 1400 31st Avenue SW, Suite 60, Minot, North Dakota,
58701. The Company’s telephone number is (701) 837-4738, and facsimile number is (701) 838-7785.

Table of Contents
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PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF TRUSTEES
General

The Articles of Amendment and Third Restated Declaration of Trust of the Company (the “Declaration of Trust”)
provides that the Board of Trustees shall be comprised of not less than five (5) nor more than fifteen (15)
trustees. The Board currently consists of nine (9) trustees.

At the Annual Meeting, nine (9) trustees are to be elected for a term of one year (expiring at the 2013 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders) and until the election and qualification of their successors. The persons proposed for election as
trustees of the Company are Linda Hall Keller, Timothy P. Mihalick, Jeffrey L. Miller, John T. Reed, W. David Scott,
Stephen L. Stenehjem, John D. Stewart, Thomas A. Wentz, Jr. and Jeffrey K. Woodbury, each of whom is presently a
member of the Board.

In the unanticipated event that any nominee should become unavailable for election or, upon election, should be
unable to serve, the proxies will be voted for the election of such other person or persons as shall be determined by the
persons named in the proxy in accordance with their judgment or, if none, the size of the Board will be reduced.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of the shareholders present in person or by proxy at the Annual
Meeting, provided a quorum is present, is required to elect each of the nine (9) nominees. The Board recommends
that the shareholders vote FOR Ms. Linda Hall Keller and Messrs. Timothy P. Mihalick, Jeffrey L. Miller, John T.
Reed, W. David Scott, Stephen L. Stenehjem, John D. Stewart, Thomas A. Wentz, Jr., and Jeffrey K. Woodbury.

Nominees

The following table sets forth the names of and biographical information regarding each of the nominees, including
their age as of July 1, 2012, principal occupation, the year they each first became a trustee, their current Board
committee membership, and the experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that have led the Board to conclude
that these nominees should serve as trustees of the Company. With the exception of Mr. Reed, who is a director of
Level 3 Communications, Inc., a NASDAQ-listed communications company, no nominee currently serves as a trustee
or board member for any other company that has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of
the Exchange Act or any company registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended.

Table of Contents
5

15



Edgar Filing: INVESTORS REAL ESTATE TRUST - Form DEF 14A

Board
Trustee Committee
Nominee Principal Occupation Age Since Membership
Entrepreneur-in-Residence, Carlson School of 63 2011 Compensation,
Linda Hall Management, University of Minnesota; Consultant Nominating &
Keller Governance
Linda Hall Keller was appointed a trustee of the
Company on September 21, 2011. Since 2008, Ms.
Keller has been Entrepreneur-in-Residence at the
Carlson School of Management, University of
Minnesota, and she is currently a consultant to
start-up companies and non-profit entities. A Phi
Beta Kappa graduate of the University of Michigan,
Ms. Keller has a Ph. D from the University of
Minnesota. She has served as an executive with
public and private companies, including service as
the Chief Executive Officer of MinuteClinic from
2002 to 2005. Ms. Keller has served on a number of
public and private boards of directors, including the
boards of two NASDAQ-listed companies, MTS
Systems Corporation, from 1995 to 2006, and
August Technology, from 2002 to 2006, and one
AMEX-listed company, HealthFitness Corporation,
from 2001 to 2010. In addition to service on the
Company’s Board of Trustees, Ms. Keller currently
serves on the boards of BodyMedia, Ascension
Health Ventures, General Blood and
Laastari/R-Clinic, Ltd. Ms. Keller brings the
following experience, qualifications, attributes and
skills to the Board: general business management,
marketing strategy and strategic planning
experience from her executive-level positions with
public and private companies, and extensive
experience with corporate governance and
compensation practices from her service on
numerous non-profit, private and public company
boards of directors.
President and Chief Executive Officer of the 53 1999 Executive
Timothy P. Company
Mihalick
Timothy Mihalick has served as a trustee of the
Company since 1999, and has been employed by
the Company since 1981. Mr. Mihalick was Senior
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company from 1997 to September 2009, and is
currently the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Mihalick is a former Vice
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President of Odell-Wentz & Associates, L.L.C., the
Company’s former adviser. Mr. Mihalick has been
on the Board of Trinity Health Group in Minot,
North Dakota since 2003, and is active in a number
of local philanthropic organizations. Mr. Mihalick
brings the following experience, qualifications,
attributes and skills to the Board: general business
management and strategic planning experience
from his lengthy service as an executive with the
Company; extensive multi-family residential,
office, medical, industrial and retail real estate
industry operating, investment and development
experience from his service as an executive at the
Company and with Odell-Wentz & Associates;
familiarity with the various real estate markets in
which the Company operates through his service as
an executive with the Company; and extensive
personal and business contacts and familiarity with
business conditions in North Dakota, one of the
Company’s principal markets, through his
involvement in the local business community and
from living and working in Minot, North Dakota for
more than 30 years.

Table of Contents
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Private Investor;

Jeffrey L. MillerManaging Partner of Miller Properties, LLP;

Chairman

John T. Reed

Managing Partner of K&J Miller Holdings LLP

Jeffrey Miller has served as a trustee of the
Company since 1985, and as Chairman of the Board
of Trustees of the Company since 2002. Mr. Miller
has been a private investor for the past five years,
and is currently the managing partner of two
privately-held real estate limited
partnerships. From 1970 to 2006, he was the
President of M&S Concessions, Inc., a food service
and facility-management company. From 1978 until
the sale of the company in 1994 he was the
President of Coca-Cola Bottling of Minot, North
Dakota. Mr. Miller brings the following experience,
qualifications, attributes and skills to the
Board: general business management, investment
and strategic planning experience from his more
than 40 years as an executive in the soft drink, food
and beverage and management industries; real
estate investment experience from his role as
managing partner in various private real estate
partnerships; a focus on shareholder interests by
virtue of his significant personal investment in the
Company; and in-depth familiarity with business
and investment conditions in North Dakota, one of
the Company’s principal markets, through his
involvement in the local business community and
from living and working in the state for more than
40 years.

Private Investor

John Reed has served as a trustee of the Company
since 2008. Mr. Reed, a private investor for the
past five years, was from 2000 to early 2005 the
Chairman of HMG Properties, a real estate
investment company, and, from 1997 to 2000, the
Chairman of McCarthy & Co., an investment
bank. Prior to that, Mr. Reed, who practiced as a
Certified Public Accountant, spent 32 years with
Arthur Andersen & Co., advising public and private
companies, including real estate companies, on
accounting and financial matters. From 2003 to the
present, Mr. Reed has served on the Boards of
Level 3 Communications, Inc., a public company,
and Tetrad Corporation, a private company. He
served as a member of the Board of First National
of Nebraska, Inc., an Omaha-based multi-state bank

68

1985 Compensation,
Nominating
and
Governance,
& Executive
(Chair)

69 2008 Audit &

Nominating
and
Governance
(Chair)
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holding company, from 2006 to 2010. From 1997
to 2006, Mr. Reed served on the Board of Bridges
Investment Fund, Inc., a mutual fund registered
under the Investment Company Act of 1940. He is
active in a number of philanthropic organizations,
including serving as Chairman of the Board of
Trustees of Boys Town. Mr. Reed brings the
following experience, qualifications, attributes and
skills to the Board: general business management,
investment and strategic planning experience from
his approximately eight years as Chairman of HMG
Properties and of McCarthy & Co.; financial and
accounting acumen from his 32 years in public
accounting; insight into governance and related best
practices from his experience as a director of
another public company, of a mutual fund and of
other private and non-profit entities; and general
familiarity with Omaha-area real estate, an
important market for the Company, by virtue of
living and working in the Omaha area for 30 years.
Chief Executive Officer of Tetrad Corporation (fka 51 2006 Compensation

W. David Scott Magnum Resources, Inc.) a real estate services and (Chair)
investment firm

W. David Scott has served as trustee of the
Company since 2006. Since 1994 he has been the
Chief Executive Officer of Tetrad Corporation
(formerly known as Magnum Resources, Inc.), a
real estate services and investment firm based in
Omaha, Nebraska. Mr. Scott serves on the Boards
of a number of civic and philanthropic
organizations, including the Hastings College
Foundation, the College World Series and the
Partnership for our Kids. From 2000 to 2008 Mr.
Scott served as a Board Member of the
Mid-America Council of the Boy Scouts. Mr. Scott
brings the following experience, qualifications,
attributes and skills to the Board: general business
management, investment and strategic planning
experience from his service as Chief Executive
Officer of Tetrad Corporation; real estate industry
investment and development experience through his
involvement in those areas as Chief Executive
Officer of Tetrad Corporation; a focus on
shareholder interests by virtue of his significant
personal and family investment in the Company;
and extensive business and personal contacts and
familiarity with real estate and general business
conditions in Omaha, an important market for the
Company, by virtue of living and working there for
over 40 years.
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President & Chief Executive Officer of Watford 57 1999 Executive
Stephen L.  City BancShares, Inc., a bank holding company;
Stenehjem President & Chairman of First International Bank &
Vice Chairman Trust, Watford City, North Dakota, a state banking
and trust association

Stephen Stenehjem has served as a trustee of the
Company since 1999. Since 1992 he has been the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Watford
City BancShares, Inc., a bank holding company,
and President and Chairman of First International
Bank & Trust, Watford City, North Dakota, a state
banking and trust association. Mr. Stenehjem
brings the following experience, qualifications,
attributes and skills to the Board: general business
management, investment and strategic planning
experience through his position as chief executive
of Watford City BancShares and First International
Bank & Trust; in-depth experience in business
investment and finance through his position as chief
executive of Watford City BancShares and First
International Bank & Trust; a focus on shareholder
interests by virtue of his significant personal and
family investment in the Company; and extensive
business and personal contacts and familiarity with
business conditions in North Dakota, a principal
market for the Company, through living and
working in the state for over 40 years.

President of Glacial Holdings, Inc. and Glacial 55 2004 Audit (Chair)

John D. StewartHoldings LLC, multi-family residential and & Nominating
commercial real estate holding companies; and
President of Glacial Holdings Property Governance
Management, Inc., a property management
company

John Stewart has served as a trustee of the
Company since 2004. He is the President of
Glacial Holdings, Inc. and Glacial Holdings LLC,
private multi-family residential and commercial real
estate holding companies, and of Glacial Holdings
Property Management, Inc., a private property
management company. Through a number of
private entities, Mr. Stewart is an investor in
various business enterprises. During the past seven
years, Mr. Stewart has served as the chair of the
Advisory Board of the Bank of North Dakota, a
director of Corridor Investors, LLC, the Minot
Family YMCA and the Minot Vocational
Adjustment Workshop, and as a trustee of the
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Oppen Family Guidance Institute. Mr. Stewart was
employed as a Certified Public Accountant by the
accounting firms of Arthur Andersen & Co. (from
1978 to 1980) and Brady, Martz & Associates P.C.
(from 1980 to 1997). Mr. Stewart brings the
following experience, qualifications, attributes and
skills to the Board: general business management,
investment and strategic planning experience from
his position as chief executive of the Glacial
Holdings group of private companies and other
business investments; financial and accounting
experience from his over 20 years in public
accounting; experience in governance and board
management through his service on the Bank of
North Dakota Advisory Board and the boards of
various non-profit entities; and general familiarity
with business and real estate conditions in North
Dakota, a principal market for the Company,
through living and working in the state for over 30
years.
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Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company

Thomas Wentz, Jr. has served as a trustee of the
Company since 1996 and has been employed by the
Company since 2000. Mr. Wentz was General
Counsel and Vice President of the Company from
January 2000 to 2002, Senior Vice President of
Asset Management and Finance from 2002 to 2009,
and is currently the Company’s Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to
joining the Company in 2000, Mr. Wentz was a
shareholder in the law firm of Pringle & Herigstad,
P.C. from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Wentz has been a
director of SRT Communications, Inc., a telephone
cooperative, from January 2000 to the present. Mr.
Wentz brings the following experience,
qualifications, attributes and skills to the Board:
general business management, investment and
strategic planning experience from his service as an
executive with the Company; extensive
multi-family residential, office, medical, industrial
and retail real estate industry operating, investment
and development experience from his service as an
executive at the Company; in-depth familiarity with
the various real estate markets in which the
Company operates, through his service as an
executive with the Company; extensive knowledge
of real estate finance and taxation, through his
experience as an executive at the Company and
previous private>

(26,256)

(208,396)
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ESTERLINE TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Six Month Periods Ended April 30, 2010 and May 1, 2009

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1,
2010 2009

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Proceeds provided by stock issuance under
employee stock plans 6,413 2,121
Excess tax benefits from stock options exercised 1,328 8
Debt and other issuance costs 0 (1,304)
Net change in credit facilities (1,677) (2,818)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 1,961 125,000
Repayment of long-term debt (2,153) (731)

5,872 122,276
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rates on Cash (4,449) 594
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 46,871 (45,239)
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Period 176,794 160,645
Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Period $223,665 $ 115,406
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid for Interest $ 14,380 $ 13,153
Cash Paid for Taxes 14,364 27,657

8
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ESTERLINE TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Three and Six Month Periods Ended April 30, 2010 and May 1, 2009

1. The consolidated balance sheet as of April 30, 2010, the consolidated statement of operations for the three and six
month periods ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the six
month periods ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, are unaudited but, in the opinion of management, all of the
necessary adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals, have been made to present fairly the financial
statements referred to above in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, the above
statements do not include all of the footnotes required for complete financial statements. The results of operations
and cash flows for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of results that can be expected for
the full year.

2. The notes to the consolidated financial statements in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 30, 2009, provide a summary of significant accounting policies and additional financial
information that should be read in conjunction with this Form 10-Q.

3. The timing of the Company s revenues is impacted by the purchasing patterns of customers and, as a result,
revenues are not generated evenly throughout the year. Moreover, the Company s first fiscal quarter, November
through January, includes significant holiday periods in both Europe and North America.

4. Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of stock options. Common shares issuable from stock
options that are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive were
712,570 and 1,544,020 in the second fiscal quarters of 2010 and 2009, respectively. Shares used for calculating
earnings per share are disclosed in the following table.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1, April 30, May 1,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Shares Used for Basic
Earnings Per Share 29,908 29,705 29,848 29,684
Shares Used for Diluted
Earnings Per Share 30,406 29,829 30,312 29,847
9
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5. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a standard that significantly changes the way

companies account for business combinations. The standard requires more assets acquired and more liabilities
assumed to be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. Under the standard, acquisition-related transaction
costs are expensed when incurred and are no longer included in goodwill as a cost of acquiring the business. The
standard also requires acquirers to estimate the acquisition-date fair value of any contingent consideration and to
recognize any subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration in earnings. In addition,
restructuring costs the acquirer expects, but is not obligated to incur, will be recognized separately from the business
acquisition. The Company adopted this standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The new standard is applied
prospectively to all business combinations with an acquisition date on or after October 31, 2009. No business
combination transactions occurred in the six months ended April 30, 2010.

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a standard that changes the way companies
account for and report noncontrolling interests (minority interests) of consolidated subsidiaries. The Company adopted
this standard in the first quarter of fiscal year 2010 with no impact to the Company s financial statements other than the
Company has changed the presentation of noncontrolling interests on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and

Consolidated Statement of Operations. Noncontrolling interests of $2.8 million at April 30, 2010, and $2.7 million of
noncontrolling interests at October 30, 2009, are now included within Equity.

6. The Company s comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1, April 30, May 1,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Net Earnings $29,648 $ 25,713 $ 42,373 $ 52,656

Change in Fair Value of Derivative
Financial Instruments, Net of

Tax 3,716 9,461 1,889 9,986

Pension and Post-retirement

Obligations, Net of Tax * 2,016 (202) 2,104 222

Foreign Currency Translation

Adjustment (5,528) 25,841 (24,800) (1,214)
Comprehensive Income $29,852 $ 60,813 $ 21,566 $ 61,650

(M Net of tax expense of $(1,526) and $(4,214) for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Net of tax expense of $(855) and $(4,545) for the first six months of fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively.

@ Net of tax (expense) benefit of $(1,225) and $58 for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Net of tax expense of $(1,026) and $(124) for the first six months of fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively.

10
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The Company s accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of the following:

(In thousands) April 30, October 30,
2010 2009
Currency translation adjustment $ 28,358  $ 53,158
Net unrealized gain on derivative contracts 13,254 11,365
Pension and post-retirement obligations (52,763) (54,867)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ Aarisn % 9,656

7. On January 26, 2009, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Racal Acoustics Global Ltd.

(Racal Acoustics) for approximately £122.6 million, or $171.3 million in cash, including acquisition costs. Racal

Acoustics develops and manufactures high technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the

defense and avionics segment. The acquisition expands the scale of the Company s existing avionics and controls

business. Racal Acoustics is included in the Avionics & Controls segment.
The following summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

acquisition. The purchase price includes the value of future development of existing technologies, the introduction of

new technologies, and the addition of new customers. These factors resulted in recording goodwill of $94.0 million.

The amount allocated to goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

(In thousands)

As of January 26, 2009

Current assets $ 30,319
Property, plant and equipment 2,931
Intangible assets subject to amortization

Programs (15 year weighted average useful life) 90,045
Goodwill 93,986
Total assets acquired 217,281
Current liabilities assumed 20,747
Deferred tax liabilities 25,213
Net assets acquired $ 171,321

On December 15, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NMC Group, Inc. (NMC) for
approximately $90.1 million in cash, including acquisition costs. NMC designs and manufactures specialized
light-weight fasteners principally for commercial aviation applications. The acquisition expands the scale of the
Company s existing advanced materials business. NMC is included in the Advanced Materials segment.

The following summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
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acquisition. The purchase price includes the value of future development of existing technologies, the introduction of
new technologies, and the addition

11
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of new customers. These factors resulted in the recording of goodwill of $40.8 million. The amount allocated to
goodwill is deductible for income tax purposes.

(In thousands)

As of December 15, 2008

Current assets $ 7,925
Property, plant and equipment 3,246
Intangible assets subject to amortization

Programs (15 year weighted average useful life) 39,580
Goodwill 40,796
Other assets 19
Total assets acquired 91,566
Current liabilities assumed 1,427
Net assets acquired $ 90,139

8. On November 3, 2008, the Company sold U.K.-based Muirhead Aerospace Limited and Traxsys Input Products
Limited, which were included in the Sensors & Systems segment, for approximately U.K. £40.0 million or
$63.4 million, resulting in an after-tax gain of $15.8 million. As a result, the consolidated income statement
presents Muirhead Aerospace Limited and Traxsys Input Products Limited as discontinued operations.

The operating results of the discontinued operations for the three and six month periods ended May 1, 2009, consisted

of the following:

(In thousands) Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
Sales $ 0 $ 0
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes 102 26,481
Income tax expense (benefit) (273) 10,650
Income from discontinued operations $ 375 $ 15,831

9. The effective income tax rate for the first six months of 2010 was 22.9% (before a $0.5 million discrete tax
expense) compared with 14.2% (before a $0.3 million discrete tax expense) for the prior-year period. The
$0.5 million tax expense in the first six months of 2010 was related mainly to tax law changes in France. The
$0.3 million tax expense in the first six months of 2009 was the result of three events. The first event was a
$2.0 million tax benefit for the reduction of previously recorded withholding tax liabilities as a result of the
enactment of a U.S.-Canadian tax treaty. The second event was the recording of a $1.6 million tax expense as a
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result of accruing a penalty due to a development with regard to certain foreign tax laws. The third event was a
$0.7 million expense resulting from the reversal of previously recorded tax benefits associated with the
implementation of CMC s SADI program. The effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the first six
months of 2010 and 2009, as both years benefited from various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense
deductions.

12
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It is reasonably possible that within the next 12 months, a previously recorded $7.1 million liability for unrecognized
foreign tax benefits associated with losses on the disposition of assets could decrease as a result of the expiration of a
statute of limitations.

10. As of April 30, 2010, the Company had three share-based compensation plans, which are described below. The
compensation cost that has been charged against income for those plans for the first six months of 2010 and 2009
was $3.4 million and $3.7 million, respectively. During the first six months of 2010 and 2009, the Company issued
235,099 and 79,887 shares, respectively, under its employee stock plans.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company converted the ESPP to a safe harbor design on December 16, 2008. Under the safe harbor design,
shares are purchased by participants at 95% of the market value on the purchase date and, therefore, compensation
cost is no longer recorded under the ESPP.

Equity Incentive Plan

Under the equity incentive plan, option exercise prices are equal to the fair market value of the Company s common
stock on the date of grant. The Company granted 355,800 options and 399,400 options in the six month periods ended
April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, respectively. The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during
the six month periods ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, was $21.38 per share and $15.76 per share,
respectively.

The fair value of each option granted by the Company was estimated using a Black-Scholes pricing model which uses
the assumptions noted in the following table. The Company uses historical data to estimate volatility of the Company s
common stock and option exercise and employee termination assumptions. The risk-free rate for the contractual life of
the option is based on the U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues in effect at the time of the grant.

Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1,
2010 2009
Volatility 43.0 432% 36.8 43.1%
Risk-free interest rate 242 4.0% 143 3.12%
Expected life (years) 45 95 45 95
Dividends 0 0

Employee Sharesave Scheme
In April 2009, the Company offered shares under its employee sharesave scheme for U.K. employees. This plan
allows participants the option to purchase shares at 95% of the market price of the stock as of the beginning of the

offering period. The term of these options is three years. The sharesave scheme is not a safe-harbor design, and
therefore, compensation cost is recognized on this plan.

13
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Under the sharesave scheme, option exercise prices are equal to the fair market value of the Company s common stock
on the date of grant. The Company granted 164,199 options in fiscal 2009, with a grant date fair value of $7.49 per
share. The fair value of the awards under the employee sharesave scheme was estimated using a Black-Scholes pricing
model which uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The risk-free rate for the contractual life of the option
is based on the U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues in effect at the time of the grant.

May 1,
2009
Volatility 50.08%
Risk-free interest rate 0.58%
Expected life (years) 3
Dividends 0

11. The Company s pension plans principally include a U.S. pension plan maintained by Esterline and a non-U.S. plan
maintained by CMC. Components of periodic pension cost consisted of the following:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1, April 30, May 1,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost
Service cost $ 1,901 $ 1,444 $ 3,791 $ 2919
Interest cost 4,543 4,568 9,038 9,143
Expected return on plan assets (4,406) (3,507) (8,779) (7,016)
Amortization of prior service cost 5 4 10 4
Amortization of actuarial loss 1,871 1,007 3,697 2,005
Net Periodic Cost $ 3914 $ 3,516 $ 7,757 $ 7,055

The Company s principal post-retirement plans include non-U.S. plans, which are non-contributory
healthcare and life insurance plans. The components of expense of these other retirement benefits
consisted of the following:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1, April 30, May 1,

2010 2009 2010 2009

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost

Service cost $ 80 $ 80 $ 158 $ 162

Interest cost 176 160 350 321

Amortization of actuarial gain (19) (18) 38) 37

Net Periodic Cost $ 237 $ 222 $ 470 $ 446
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12. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy has been established that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. An asset or liability s level within the fair
value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The
hierarchy of fair value measurements is described below:

Level 1 Valuations are based on quoted prices that the Company has the ability to obtain in actively traded markets

for identical assets and liabilities. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available

in an active market or exchange traded market, a valuation of these instruments does not require a significant degree
of judgment.

Level 2 Valuations are based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant
assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 Valuations are based on model-based techniques for which some or all of the assumptions are obtained from
indirect market information that is significant to the overall fair value measurement and which require a significant
degree of management judgment.

The following table sets forth the Company s financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy at April 30, 2010, and October 30, 2009.

(In thousands) Level 2

April 30, October 30,

2010 2009

Assets:
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments $ 18,153 $ 16,590
Derivative contracts not designated as
hedging instruments $ 213 $ 442
Embedded derivatives $ 53 $ 0
Liabilities:
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments $ 2,694 $ 181
Derivative contracts not designated as
hedging instruments $ 1,502 $ 1,405
Embedded derivatives $ 1,915 $ 588

The Company s embedded derivatives are the result of entering into sales or purchase contracts that are denominated in
a currency other than the Company s functional currency or the supplier s or customer s functional currency. The fair
value is determined by calculating the difference between quoted exchange rates at the time the contract was entered
into and the period end exchange rate. These contracts are categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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The Company s derivative contracts consist of foreign currency exchange contracts and interest rate swap agreements.
These derivative contracts are over the counter and their fair value is determined using modeling techniques that
include market inputs such as interest rates, yield curves, and currency exchange rates. These contracts are categorized
as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

13. The Company uses derivative financial instruments in the form of foreign currency forward exchange contracts
and interest rate swap contracts for the purpose of minimizing exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on business transactions and interest rates, respectively. The Company s policy is to execute such instruments
with banks the Company believes to be creditworthy and not to enter into derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. These derivative financial instruments do not subject the Company to undue risk, as gains
and losses on these instruments generally offset gains and losses on the underlying assets, liabilities, or anticipated
transactions that are being hedged.

All derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. For a derivative that

has not been designated as an accounting hedge, the change in the fair value is recognized immediately through

earnings. For a derivative that has been designated as an accounting hedge of an existing asset or liability (a fair value
hedge), the change in the fair value of both the derivative and underlying asset or liability is recognized immediately
through earnings. For a derivative designated as an accounting hedge of an anticipated transaction (a cash flow
hedge), the change in the fair value is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income (AOCI) to the extent the derivative is effective in mitigating the exposure related to the

anticipated transaction. The change in the fair value related to the ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is

immediately recognized in earnings. The amount recorded within AOCI is reclassified into earnings in the same
period during which the underlying hedged transaction affects earnings.

The fair values of derivative instruments are presented on a gross basis, as the Company does not have any derivative
contracts which are subject to master netting arrangements. The Company did not have any hedges with
credit-risk-related contingent features or that required the posting of collateral as of April 30, 2010. The cash flows
from derivative contracts are recorded in operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts

The Company transacts business in various foreign currencies which subjects the Company s cash flows and earnings
to exposure related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures arise primarily from purchases or
sales of products and services from third parties. Foreign currency forward exchange contracts provide for the
purchase or sale of foreign currencies at specified future dates at specified exchange rates and are used to offset
changes in the fair value of certain assets or liabilities or forecasted cash flows resulting from transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. As of April 30, 2010, and October 30, 2009, the Company had outstanding foreign
currency forward exchange contracts principally to sell U.S. dollars with notional amounts of $291.1 million and
$275.3 million, respectively. These
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notional values consist primarily of contracts for the European euro, British pound sterling and Canadian dollar, and
are stated in U.S. dollar equivalents at spot exchange rates at the respective dates.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company manages its exposure to interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate
debt, which over time should moderate the costs of debt financing. When considered necessary, the Company may use
financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to help meet this objective. In June 2009, the Company entered
into an interest rate swap agreement on the $175.0 million Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2013. The swap
agreement exchanged the fixed interest rate of 7.75% for a variable interest rate on the $175.0 million principal
amount outstanding. The variable interest rate is based upon LIBOR plus 5.37% and was 5.60% at April 30, 2010.
The fair value of the Company s interest rate swap was a $1.3 million asset at April 30, 2010, and was estimated by
discounting expected cash flows using market interest rates. The Company records interest receivable and interest
payable on the interest rate swap on a net basis. The Company recognized a net interest receivable of $1.4 million at
April 30, 2010. A $2.9 million deferred gain on a terminated interest rate swap is being amortized in proportion to the
repayment of the underlying debt. The unamortized balance at April 30, 2010, was $2.0 million. The gain will be
amortized through 2013.

Embedded Derivative Instruments

The Company s embedded derivatives are the result of entering into sales or purchase contracts that are denominated in
a currency other than the Company s functional currency or the supplier s or customer s functional currency.

Net Investment Hedge
In February 2006, the Company entered into a term loan for £57.0 million. The Company designated the term loan a
hedge of the investment in a certain U.K. business unit. The term loan was fully repaid in June 2009. A cumulative

foreign currency loss of $4.8 million resulting from the accounting of the term loan as a net investment hedge will
remain in other comprehensive income in shareholders equity until the hedged investment is disposed of or sold.
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Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Fair values of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at April 30, 2010, and October 30, 2009,

consisted of:

(In thousands)

Classification
Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts Other current assets
Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts Other assets
Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts Accrued liabilities
Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts Other liabilities
Embedded derivative instruments Other current assets
Embedded derivative instruments Accrued liabilities
Embedded derivative instruments Other liabilities
Interest rate swap Long-term debt, net

of current maturities

Fair Value
April 30, October 30,
2010 2009
$ 14,750 $ 17,032
$ 3,616 $ 0
$ 3,876 $ 1,586
$ 320 $ 0
$ 53 $ 0
$ 62 $ 588
$ 1,853 $ 0
$ 1,295 $ (269)

The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three and six month periods

ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, consisted of:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended
Location of April 30, May 1,
Gain (Loss) 2010 2009
Fair Value Hedges:
Interest rate Interest
swap contracts
Expense $1,103 $ 161
Embedded
derivatives Sales $ (775 $ (2,020)
Cash Flow Hedges:

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts:

Amount of gain

(loss) recognized

in AOCI (effective

portion) AOCI $2,904 $ 19,238
Amount of gain

(loss) reclassified

from AOCI

into income Sales $2,338 $ (5,564)

Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1,
2010 2009
$ 1,735 $ 242
$(1,202) $ (1,777)
$(1,583) $ 25,520
$ 4,326 $ (10,989)
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Net Investment Hedges:
UK. term loan AOCI $ 0 $ (838) $ 0

18

$

2,612
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During the first six months of 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded losses of $1.2 million and $1.9 million,
respectively, on foreign currency forward exchange contracts that have not been designated as an accounting hedge.
These foreign currency exchange losses are included in selling, general and administrative expense.

There was no significant impact to the Company s earnings related to the ineffective portion of any hedging
instruments during the first six months of 2010 and 2009. In addition, there was no significant impact to the
Company s earnings when a hedged firm commitment no longer qualified as a fair value hedge or when a hedged
forecasted transaction no longer qualified as a cash flow hedge during the first six months of 2010 and 2009.

Amounts included in AOCI are reclassified into earnings when the hedged transaction settles. The Company expects
to reclassify approximately $12.9 million of net gain into earnings over the next 12 months. The maximum duration of
the Company s foreign currency cash flow hedge contracts at April 30, 2010, is 24 months.

14. Segment information:
Business segment information for continuing operations includes the segments of Avionics & Controls, Sensors &
Systems and Advanced Materials.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1, April 30, May 1,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Sales

Avionics & Controls $ 198,719 $ 169,111 $368,976 $ 297,579
Sensors & Systems 80,346 86,755 155,088 171,310
Advanced Materials 108,555 103,636 202,916 200,330
Total Sales $ 387,620 $ 359,502 $726,980 $ 669,219

Income from Continuing Operations

Avionics & Controls $ 28,461 $ 21,685 $ 47,893 $ 36,160
Sensors & Systems 8,693 9,899 13,789 20,151
Advanced Materials 17,127 14,359 25,857 24,333
Segment Earnings 54,281 45,943 87,539 80,644
Corporate expense (8,854) (6,258) (16,945) (15,930)
Other income (expense) 38 2,714) 3) (7,728)
Interest income 20 370 403 781
Interest expense (7,348) (7,610) (15,309) (14,346)

$ 38,137 $ 29,731 $ 55,685 $ 43,421

15. The acquisition of Racal Acoustics was funded from cash proceeds from the sale of U.K.-based Muirhead and
Traxsys and the Company s line of credit. To facilitate the acquisition of Racal Acoustics, the Company executed a
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intercompany loan with a wholly owned subsidiary, of which its functional currency is the pound sterling. Due to
holding of pounds sterling to fund the acquisition during a period of foreign exchange volatility, the Company
incurred a $7.9 million foreign currency transaction loss in January 2009, which was recorded in other expense.

16. The following schedules set forth condensed consolidating financial information as required by Rule 3-10 of
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X as of April 30, 2010, and October 30, 2009, and for the
applicable periods ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, for (a) Esterline Technologies Corporation (the Parent);
(b) on a combined basis, the subsidiary guarantors (Guarantor Subsidiaries) of the Credit Agreement, Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013 (Senior Subordinated Notes) and Senior Notes due 2017 (Senior Notes) which
include Advanced Input Devices, Inc., Amtech Automated Manufacturing Technology, Angus Electronics Co.,
Armtec Countermeasures Co., Armtec Countermeasures TNO Co., Armtec Defense Products Co., AVISTA,
Incorporated, BVR Technologies Co., CMC DataComm Inc., CMC Electronics Acton Inc., CMC Electronics
Aurora Inc., EA Technologies Corporation, Equipment Sales Co., Esterline Canadian Holding Corporation,
Esterline International Company, Esterline Sensors Services Americas, Inc., Esterline Technologies Holdings
Limited, Esterline Technologies Ltd. (England), H.A. Sales Co., Hauser Inc., Hytek Finishes Co., Janco
Corporation, Kirkhill-TA Co., Korry Electronics Co., Leach Holding Corporation, Leach International
Corporation, Leach International Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (Mexico), Leach Technology Group, Inc., Mason
Electric Co., MC Tech Co., Memtron Technologies Co., NMC Group, Inc., Norwich Aero Products, Inc., Palomar
Products, Inc., Pressure Systems, Inc., Pressure Systems International, Inc., Racal Acoustics Inc., UMM
Electronics Inc., and (c) on a combined basis, the subsidiary non-guarantors (Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries), which
include Acoustics Holdco Limited, Auxitrol S.A., BAE Systems Canada/Air TV LLC, CMC Electronics Inc.,
CMC Electronics ME Inc., Darchem Engineering Ltd., Darchem Holding Ltd., Esterline Acquisition Ltd.,
Esterline Canadian Acquisition Corporation, Esterline Canada Limited Partnership, Esterline Foreign Sales
Corporation, Esterline Input Devices Asia Ltd., Esterline Input Devices (Shanghai) Ltd., Esterline Mexico S. de
R.L. de C.V., Esterline Sensors Services Asia PTE Ltd., Esterline Technologies Acquisition Ltd., Esterline
Technologies Denmark ApS, Esterline Technologies Europe Limited, Guizhou Leach-Tianyi Aviation Electrical
Company Ltd., Leach International Asia-Pacific Ltd., Leach International Europe S.A., Leach International
Germany GmbH, Leach International U.K. Ltd., Leach Italia Srl., LRE Medical GmbH, Pressure Systems
International Ltd., Rag Newco Ltd., Racal Acoustics Global Ltd., Racal Acoustics Group Ltd., Racal Acoustics
Holdings Limited, Racal Acoustics Limited, TA Mfg. Ltd., UKCI Limited, Wallop Defence Systems Ltd., Wallop
Industries Ltd., Weston Aero 2003, and Weston Aerospace Ltd. Muirhead Aerospace Limited (Muirhead),
Norcroft Dynamics Ltd. (Norcroft), and Traxsys Input Products Ltd. (Traxsys), were Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries
as of October 30, 2009. As explained in Note 8, Muirhead, Norcroft, and Traxsys were sold on November 3, 2008,
and, accordingly, Muirhead, Norcroft, and Traxsys were excluded from the Condensed Consolidating Balance
Sheet at May 1, 2009, and accounted for as a discontinued operation in the Condensed Consolidating Statement of
Operations and Cash Flows for the six month period ended May 1, 2009. The Guarantor Subsidiaries are direct and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Esterline Technologies
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Corporation and have fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally, guaranteed the Credit Agreement, the Senior
Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of April 30, 2010.

(In thousands)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Income tax refundable
Deferred income tax benefits
Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Property, Plant &

Equipment, Net

Goodwill

Intangibles, Net

Debt Issuance Costs, Net
Deferred Income Tax Benefits
Other Assets

Amounts Due (To) From
Subsidiaries

Investment in Subsidiaries

Total Assets

Parent

$ 80,563

103,787

1,350
0

0
6,182
44,127
1,224

0
1,798,645

$ 1,955,315

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 5335
116,652
121,819

0
(1,641)
6,607

1

248,773

165,880
249,494
95,983
0

3,474
1,767

199,490
251,641

$ 1,216,502

21

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 137,767
161,897
140,970

4,299
16,477
11,883
14,683

487,976

105,398
482,646
301,438
0
33,807
10,428

0
248,979

$ 1,670,672

Eliminations Total

$ 223,665
278,580
262,789

4,299
38,029
18,490
14,684

S OO OO OO

o

840,536

272,628
732,140
397,421
6,182
81,408
13,419

SO OO OO

(199,490) 0
(2,299,265) 0

$ (2,498,755) $ 2,343,734
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(In thousands)

Parent

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Credit facilities
Current maturities of
long-term debt
Deferred income tax
liabilities

Federal and foreign
income taxes

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net
Deferred Income Tax
Liabilities

Pension and Post-Retirement
Obligations

Other Liabilities

Amounts Due To (From)
Subsidiaries

Shareholders Equity

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders Equity

$ 537
9,322
0
7,813
376

(10,429)
7,619
468,939

35,988

12,540
8,610

135,860
1,285,759

$ 1,955,315

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 26,068
63,817
0
325
279

(3,316)
87,173
44,323

61

50,472
279

0
1,034,194

$ 1,216,502

22

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 49,478
108,515
4,299

287

7,589

18,791
188,959
15,376

90,330

29,463
15,034

149,450
1,182,060

$ 1,670,672

Eliminations

o

0
0

(285,310)
(2,213,445)

$ (2,498,755)

Total

$ 76,083
181,654
4,299

8,425

8,244

5,046
283,751
528,638

126,379

92,475
23,923

0
1,288,568

$ 2,343,734
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three month period ended April 30, 2010.

(In thousands)

Net Sales
Cost of Sales

Expenses

Selling, general

and administrative
Research, development
and engineering

Other income

Total Expenses

Operating Earnings From
Continuing Operations
Interest Income

Interest Expense

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations

Before Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Including Noncontrolling
Interests

Income Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interests

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Attributable to Esterline
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Income (Loss)

Parent

)

0
(3,899)
6,525

(2,626)
(532)

(2,094)

0

(2,094)
31,742

$ 29,648

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

$ 200,359 $ 187,742

132,614 126,289
67,745 61,453
29,325 35,969

8,074 10,403
0 (38)
37,399 46,334
30,346 15,119
(624) (9,857)
4,893 10,290
26,077 14,686
5,703 3,294
20,374 11,392
0 (24)
20,374 11,368
3,276 562

$ 23,650 $ 11,930

Eliminations
$ (481)
(481)

0

0
14,360
(14,360)

o

0
(35,580)

$ (35,580)

Total

$ 387,620
258,422

129,198

65,294

18,477
(33)

83,733

45,465
(20)
7,348

38,137
8,465

29,672

(24)

29,648

$ 29,648
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Attributable to Esterline
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the six month period ended April 30, 2010.

(In thousands)

Net Sales
Cost of Sales

Expenses

Selling, general

and administrative
Research, development
and engineering

Other expense

Total Expenses

Operating Earnings From
Continuing Operations
Interest Income

Interest Expense

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations

Before Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Including Noncontrolling
Interests

Income Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interests

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Attributable to Esterline
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries

Net Income (Loss)

Parent

)

(7,779)
13,164

(5,385)
(1,234)

4,151)

0

4,151)
46,524

$ 42,373

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

$ 372,185 $ 355,276

249,477 244257
122,708 111,019
59,581 68,028
14,205 21,319
0 3
73,786 89,350
48,922 21,669
(1,254) (19,970)
9,881 20,864
40,295 20,775
9,202 5,266
31,093 15,509
0 (78)
31,093 15,431
6,581 304

$ 37674 $ 157735

Eliminations
$ (481)
(481)

0

0
28,600
(28,600)

o

0
(53.409)

$ (53,409)

Total

$ 726,980
493,253

233,727

127,609

35,524
3

163,136

70,591
(403)
15,309

55,685
13,234

42,451

(78)

42,373

$§ 42373

46



Edgar Filing: INVESTORS REAL ESTATE TRUST - Form DEF 14A

Attributable to Esterline
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the six month period ended April 30, 2010.

(In thousands)

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net earnings (loss) including
noncontrolling interests $ 42,373 $ 37,674 $ 15,813 $ (53,409 $ 42451
Depreciation & amortization 0 16,163 20,218 0 36,381
Deferred income taxes (3,074) 43 (5,465) 0 (8,496)
Share-based compensation 0 1,573 1,858 0 3,431
Working capital changes, net
of effect of acquisitions
Accounts receivable 3D 3,048 (10,851) 0 (7,834)
Inventories 0 27 8,613 0 8,640
Prepaid expenses 0 (1,658) 416 0 (1,242)
Other current assets 0 (D) (2,778) 0 (2,779)
Accounts payable 41 3,124 (7,108) 0 (4,025)
Accrued liabilities (3,855) 2,069 (8,212) 0 (9,998)
Federal & foreign
income taxes 2,069 (1,930) 7,270 0 7,409
Other liabilities 3,866 (1,074) 2,396 0 5,188
Other, net (D 125 2,454 0 2,578

41,306 59,183 24,624 (53,409) 71,704
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Purchases of capital assets (55) (8,652) (16,878) 0 (25,585)
Proceeds from sale
of capital assets 0 92 5 0 97
Acquisitions of businesses,
net of cash acquired 0 (360) (408) 0 (768)

(55) (8,920) (17,281) 0 (26,256)
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(In thousands)

Parent

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Proceeds provided by stock
issuance under employee
stock plans

Excess tax benefits from
stock options exercised

Net change in credit facilities
Proceeds from issuance of
long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt
Net change in intercompany
financing

Effect of foreign exchange
rates on cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
end of year

6,413

1,328
0

0
(1,885)

(14,452)

(8,596)

32,656

47,907

$ 80,563

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

o

0
(200)

(49,345)

(49,545)

“)

714

4,621

$§ 5335

26

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

1,677)

1,961
(68)

10,388

10,604

(4,446)

13,501

124,266

$ 137,767

Eliminations

o

o

53,409

53,409

$ 0

Total

6,413

1,328
(1,677)

1,961
(2,153)

5,872

(4,449)

46,871

176,794

$ 223,665
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of October 30, 2009.

(In thousands)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Income tax refundable
Deferred income tax benefits
Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Property, Plant &

Equipment, Net

Goodwill

Intangibles, Net

Debt Issuance Costs, Net
Deferred Income Tax Benefits
Other Assets

Amounts Due To (From)
Subsidiaries

Investment in Subsidiaries

Total Assets

Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries

$ 47907 $ 4,621
0 119,700

0 121,846

0 0
21,417 (2,172)

0 4,949

0 0

69,324 248,944
1,527 160,099

0 249,134

0 100,185

7,136 0
43,514 3,623
(72) 1,650

0 159,482
1,751,705 245,060

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
$ 124266 $ 0 $ 176,794
151,276 0 270,976
153,436 0 275,282
7,638 0 7,638
12,189 0 31,434
12,476 0 17,425
17,048 0 17,048
478,329 0 796,597
101,625 0 263,251
487,674 0 736,808
321,897 0 422,082
0 0 7,136
31,977 0 79,114
7,681 0 9,259
0 (159,482) 0
248,675 (2,245,440) 0

$ 1,873,134 $ 1,168,177 $ 1,677,858 $ (2,404,922) $§ 2,314,247
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(In thousands)

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Credit facilities
Current maturities of
long-term debt
Deferred income tax

liabilities

Federal and foreign

income taxes

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net
Deferred Income Tax

Liabilities

Pension and Post-Retirement

Obligations

Other Liabilities
Amounts Due To (From)

Subsidiaries

Shareholders Equity

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders Equity

Parent

$ 578
13,446

0

4,688
1,455
(12,498)
7,669
472,385

34,263

11,892
9,020

84,884
1,253,021

$1,873,134

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 22944
61,748

0

351

227

(1,386)

83,884

36,259

(312)

51,825
0

0
996,521

$ 1,168,177

28

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations
$ 58,782 $ 0
116,473 0
5,896 0
370 0
5,612 0
15,553 0
202,686 0
11,514 0
96,505 0
29,898 0
11,007 0
136,864 (221,748)
1,189,384 (2,183,174)
$ 1,677,858 $

Total

$ 82,304
191,667
5,896
5,409
7,294

1,669
294,239
520,158

130,456

93,615
20,027

0
1,255,752

(2,404,922) $2,314,247
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Net Sales
Cost of Sales

Expenses

Selling, general

and administrative
Research, development
and engineering

Other expense (income)

Total Expenses

Operating Earnings From
Continuing Operations
Interest Income

Interest Expense

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations

Before Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Including Noncontrolling
Interests

Income Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interests

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Attributable to Esterline
Income From Discontinued
Operations Attributable to
Esterline, Net of Tax
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries

Parent

)

0

0
2,664

2,664

(2,664)
(5,983)
7,270

(3,951)
(445)

(3,5006)

0

(3,5006)

29,219

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries

$ 201,402 $ 158,361

133,132 114,033
68,270 44,328
29,404 25,215

7,767 10,527
(31) 81
37,140 35,823
31,130 8,505
(1,116) (8,769)
6,114 9,724
26,132 7,550
3,409 1,352
22,723 6,198
0 o))
22,723 6,121
375 0
6,564 (1,001)

Eliminations

$ (261)
(261)

0

=)

0
15,498
(15,498)

(e}

0

(34,782)

Total

$ 359,502
246,904

112,598

54,619

18,294
2,714
75,627

36,971
(370)
7,610

29,731
4,316

25,415

(77)

25,338

375
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Net Income (Loss)
Attributable to Esterline $ 25,713 $ 29,662 $ 5,120 $ (34,782)

29

$

25,713
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the six month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Net Sales
Cost of Sales

Expenses

Selling, general

and administrative
Research, development
and engineering

Other expense (income)

Total Expenses

Operating Earnings From
Continuing Operations
Interest Income

Interest Expense

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations

Before Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income (Loss) From

Continuing Operations

Including Noncontrolling Interests
Income Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interests

Income (Loss) From
Continuing Operations
Attributable to Esterline
Income From Discontinued
Operations Attributable to
Esterline, Net of Tax
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries

Parent

$ 0
0

0

0

0
3914

3914

(3,914)
(11,207)
13,594

(6,301)
(888)

(5,413)

(5,413)

0
58,069

$ 52,656

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

388,582
258,277

130,305

61,784

15,434
10,656

87,874

42,431
(2,223)
11,237

33,417
2,742

30,675

30,675

15,831
7,843

54,349

Non-

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

281,175
196,730

84,445

52,560

20,258
(6,842)

65,976

18,469
(16,141)
18,305

16,305
4,630

11,675

(112)

11,563

0
5,345

16,908

Eliminations

$ (538)
(538)

0

oS O

0
28,790
(28,790)

o

0
(71,257)

$ (71,257)

$

$

Total

669,219
454,469

214,750

114,344

35,692
7,728

157,764

56,986
(781)
14,346

43,421
6,484

36,937

(112)

36,825

15,831
0

52,656
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Net Income (Loss)
Attributable to Esterline
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the six month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net earnings (loss) including

noncontrolling interests $ 52,656 $ 54,349

Depreciation & amortization 0 15,125

Deferred income taxes (1,914) (82)
Share-based compensation 0 2,012

Gain on sale of

discontinued operation 0 (26,481)

Working capital changes, net
of effect of acquisitions

Accounts receivable (635) 10,603

Inventories 0 (6,352)
Prepaid expenses 1,851 (1,381)
Other current assets 0 0

Accounts payable 80 (4,645)
Accrued liabilities (3,589) (10,477)
Federal & foreign

income taxes (15,071) 5,126

Other liabilities 6,201 (126)
Other, net (494) 19

39,085 37,690

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Purchases of capital assets 2) (12,998)
Proceeds from sale of

discontinued operation,

net of cash 0 62,944
Proceeds from sale
of capital assets 0 323
Acquisitions of businesses,
net of cash acquired 0 (89,635)
2) (39,366)
31

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 17,020
15,930
(3,707)

1,725

0
31,538
(12,145)

(2,615)
870

(14,935)
2,576
661
1,884

(4,033)

34,769

(7,884)

0
42
(161,186)

(169,028)

Eliminations

$ (71,257)
0
0
0

SO OO OO

o O O

(71,257)

Total

$ 52,768
31,055
(5,703)

3,737
(26,481)
41,506
(18,497)

(2,145)
870
(19,500)
(11,490)
(9,284)
7,959
(4,508)

40,287

(20,884)

62,944
365
(250,821)

(208,396)
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(In thousands)

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries ~ Subsidiaries
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Proceeds provided by stock
issuance under employee
stock plans 2,121 0 0
Excess tax benefits from
stock options exercised 8 0 0
Debt and other issuance costs (1,304) 0 0
Net change in credit facilities 0 0 (2,818)
Proceeds from issuance of
long-term debt 125,000 0 0
Repayment of long-term debt ) (413) (309)
Net change in intercompany
financing (207,455) (17,359) 153,557
(81,639) (17,772) 150,430
Effect of foreign exchange
rates on cash 2 (25) 617
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (42,554) (19,473) 16,788
Cash and cash equivalents
beginning of year 80,884 21,913 57,848
Cash and cash equivalents
end of year $ 38,330 $ 2440 $ 74,636

32

Eliminations

o O

o

71,257

71,257

$ 0

Total

2,121

8
(1,304)
(2,818)

125,000
(731)

0

122,276

594

(45,239)

160,645

$ 115,406
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We operate our businesses in three segments: Avionics & Controls, Sensors & Systems and Advanced Materials.

The Avionics & Controls segment includes avionics systems, control systems, interface technologies and
communication systems capabilities. Avionics systems designs and develops cockpit systems integration and avionics
solutions for commercial and military applications. Control systems designs and manufactures technology interface
systems for military and commercial aircraft and land- and sea-based military vehicles. Interface technologies
manufactures and develops custom control panels, input systems for medical, industrial, military and gaming
industries. Communication systems designs and manufactures military audio and data products for severe battlefield
environments. In addition, communication systems designs and manufactures communication control systems to
enhance security and aural clarity in military applications.

The Sensors & Systems segment includes power systems and advanced sensors capabilities. Power systems develops
and manufactures electrical power switching and other related systems, principally for aerospace and defense
customers. Advanced sensors develops and manufactures high precision temperature and pressure sensors for
aerospace and defense customers.

The Advanced Materials segment includes engineered materials and defense technologies capabilities. Engineered
materials develops and manufactures thermally engineered components and high-performance elastomer products
used in a wide range of commercial aerospace and military applications. Defense technologies develops and
manufactures combustible ordnance components and warfare countermeasure devices for military customers. Sales in
all segments include domestic, international, defense and commercial customers.

Our business and strategic plan focuses on the continued development of our products principally for aerospace and
defense markets. We are concentrating our efforts to expand our capabilities in these markets and anticipate the global
needs of our customers and respond to such needs with comprehensive solutions. These efforts focus on continuous
research and new product development, acquisitions and strategic realignments of operations to expand our
capabilities as a more comprehensive supplier to our customers across our entire product offering.

On November 3, 2008, we sold Muirhead Aerospace Limited (Muirhead) and Traxsys Input Products Limited
(Traxsys), which were included in the Sensors & Systems segment. The results of Muirhead and Traxsys were
accounted for as a discontinued operation in the consolidated financial statements.
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On December 15, 2008, we acquired NMC Group, Inc. (NMC), which designs and manufactures specialized
light-weight fasteners principally for commercial aviation applications. NMC is included in our Advanced Materials
segment.

On January 26, 2009, we acquired Racal Acoustics Global Ltd. (Racal Acoustics), which develops and manufactures
high technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics segment. Racal
Acoustics is included in our Avionics & Controls segment.

During the first six months of fiscal 2010, our income from continuing operations was $42.4 million or $1.40 per
diluted share compared to $36.8 million or $1.23 per diluted share during the prior-year period, reflecting strong sales
and earnings from Avionics & Controls, improved results from Advanced Materials, and weak results from Sensors &
Systems. Sales and operating earnings of Avionics & Controls increased 24.0% and 32.4%, respectively, over the
prior-year period and reflected strong sales and gross margins of avionics systems for the T-6B military trainer and a
military transport retrofit, as well as incremental sales from the acquisition of Racal Acoustics. Avionics & Controls
sales and earnings also reflected strong sales and gross margins of interface technology devices. Advanced Materials
results improved principally due to strong sales and gross margins from flare countermeasure devices. Sensors &
Systems sales and earnings were weak compared to the prior-year period principally due to the downturn in
commercial aviation. Income from continuing operations in the first six months of fiscal 2009 was impacted by a
foreign currency loss of $7.9 million relating to the pound sterling-denominated funding of Racal Acoustics. Income
from continuing operations in the first six months of fiscal 2010 reflected an effective tax rate of 22.9% compared to
14.2% in the prior-year period. The increase in the effective income tax rate from the prior-year period reflected a
change in tax law in France, the expiration of U.S. research and development credits and changes in a U.S.-Canadian
tax treaty. In addition, the prior-year period s effective income tax rate reflected tax benefits associated with the

$7.9 million foreign currency loss.

Income from discontinued operations for the first six months of fiscal 2009 was $0.53 per diluted share, reflecting the
gain on sale of our U.K.-based Muirhead and Traxsys subsidiaries in November 2008.

Net income was $42.4 million, or $1.40 per diluted share, compared with net income of $52.7 million, or $1.76 per
diluted share, in the prior-year period.
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Results of Operations

Three Month Period Ended April 30, 2010, Compared with Three Month Period Ended May 1, 2009

Sales for the second fiscal quarter increased 7.8% over the prior-year period. Sales by segment were as follows:

(In thousands)

Three Months Ended
Incr./(Decr.)
from prior April 30, May 1,

year period 2010 2009
Avionics & Controls 17.5% $ 198,719 $ 169,111
Sensors & Systems (7.4)% 80,346 86,755
Advanced Materials 4.7% 108,555 103,636
Total Net Sales $ 387,620 $ 359,502

The 17.5% increase in sales of Avionics & Controls was principally due to increased sales volumes of cockpit
avionics systems for military aviation. Avionics & Controls also benefited from stronger sales of interface
technologies devices to the medical market and the casino gaming industry. These increases were partially offset by
lower sales of cockpit controls for commercial and military aviation OEM and after-market customers, as well as
lower sales of communication devices for military applications.

The 7.4% decrease in sales of Sensors & Systems mainly reflected lower requirements for business jets, helicopters
and the effect of exchange rates. Sales in the second fiscal quarter of 2010 reflected a stronger pound sterling and euro
relative to the U.S. dollar. The average exchange rate from the pound sterling to the U.S. dollar increased from 1.44 in
the second fiscal quarter of 2009 to 1.53 in the second fiscal quarter of 2010. The average exchange rate from the euro
to the U.S. dollar increased from 1.30 in the second fiscal quarter of 2009 to 1.35 in the second fiscal quarter of 2010.
Subsequent to the close of Esterline s second fiscal quarter of 2010, there has been a dramatic weakening of the pound
sterling and euro against the U.S. dollar.

The 4.7% increase in sales of Advanced Materials principally reflected increased sales at our U.S. and non-U.S.
countermeasure operations. The increases were partially offset by lower sales at our engineered materials operations
reflecting decreased requirements from space, regional aircraft, and fire protection for oil and gas applications
customers.

Overall, gross margin as a percentage of sales was 33.3%, compared to 31.3% in the same period a year ago.

Avionics & Controls segment gross margin was 34.4% and 33.1% for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The increase in Avionics & Controls segment gross margin mainly reflected improved sales mix, higher
gross margin on the T-6B program due to lower production costs, and increased gross margin on the cockpit military
transport retrofit, as well as a higher recovery of fixed costs at our avionics systems operation. In addition, the
increase in Avionics & Controls gross margin reflected stronger gross margins at our interface technologies
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operation, partially offset by sales mix and a lower recovery of fixed costs at our control systems operations.

Sensors & Systems segment gross margin was 35.1% and 32.6% for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Advanced sensors gross margin benefited from higher margin military aftermarket sales, lower write-offs
of inventory and decreased warranty expense. Power systems benefited from increased sales of commercial aircraft
retrofit requirements and power system devices for defense applications and strong cost control.

Advanced Materials segment gross margin was 30.1% compared to 27.4% for the same period one year ago. The
increase in gross margin principally reflected an improved recovery of fixed costs due to higher sales volumes and a
favorable sales mix at our non-U.S. countermeasure operations. Additionally, gross margins at our engineered
materials operations improved compared to the prior-year period due to strong cost control and increased sales of
higher margin engineered materials for defense applications.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (which include corporate expenses) totaled $65.3 million, or 16.8% of
sales, and $54.6 million, or 15.2% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and 2009, respectively. The increase
in the amount of selling, general and administrative expenses was due principally to the effect of exchange rates on
operating expenses at our non-U.S. operations. Additionally, in the prior-year period, selling, general and
administrative expense benefited from foreign currency gains on forward contracts.

Research, development and engineering spending was $18.5 million, or 4.8% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of
2010 compared with $18.3 million, or 5.1% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009. Fiscal 2010 research,
development and engineering spending is expected to be approximately 5.0% of sales.

Segment earnings (operating earnings excluding corporate expenses and other income or expense) for the second
fiscal quarter of 2010 were $54.3 million, or 14.0% of sales, compared with $45.9 million, or 12.8% of sales, for the
second fiscal quarter of 2009.

Avionics & Controls segment earnings were $28.5 million, or 14.3% of sales, in the second fiscal quarter of 2010 and
$21.7 million, or 12.8% of sales, in the second fiscal quarter of 2009, principally reflecting strong earnings from our
avionics systems and interface technologies operations. Our avionics systems results substantially improved from an
operating loss in the second fiscal quarter of 2009 to solid earnings in the second fiscal quarter of 2010. The increase
in earnings from avionics systems reflected increased sales and gross margin from the T-6B program and a cockpit
retrofit program of a military transport aircraft. In the second fiscal quarter of fiscal 2010 and 2009, the avionics
systems operation was impacted by a $1.0 million and $4.1 million, respectively, estimate-to-complete adjustments
related to certain long-term contracts. Our cockpit control systems and communications systems operations earnings
declined against the prior-year period. Cockpit controls operations were impacted by $1.3 million in new product
development costs and higher operating costs and research, development and engineering expense. Our
communications operations were impacted by delayed shipments due to a supplier quality issue.
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Sensors & Systems segment earnings were $8.7 million, or 10.8% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2010
compared with $9.9 million, or 11.4% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009. Both advanced sensors and
power systems operations earnings were below the prior-year period. Advanced sensors results were impacted by
lower demand from commercial aviation customers, severance costs and startup costs of a Mexico manufacturing
operation. Our power systems operations were impacted by lower demand from commercial aviation customers and
startup costs associated with a new Asia operation.

Advanced Materials segment earnings were $17.1 million, or 15.8% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2010
compared with $14.4 million, or 13.9% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009, principally reflecting improved
earnings at our U.K. countermeasure operations. Engineered materials operations were impacted by lower demand
from commercial aviation and industrial commercial customers.

Interest expense for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 was $7.3 million compared with $7.6 million for the second
fiscal quarter of 2009, reflecting lower interest rates.

The effective income tax rate for the second fiscal quarter of 2010 was 21.8% (before a $0.2 million discrete tax
expense) compared with 12.2% (before a $0.7 million discrete tax expense) for the prior-year period. The $0.2 million
tax expense in the second fiscal quarter of 2010 was related to the accrual of interest on tax reserves. The $0.7 million
tax expense in the second fiscal quarter of 2009 was related to the reduction of prior-year tax benefits resulting from
CMC s implementation of its SADI program. The effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the second fiscal
quarters of 2010 and 2009, as both years benefited from various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense
deductions.

To the extent that sales are transacted in a currency other than the functional currency of the operating unit, we are
subject to foreign currency fluctuation risk. We use forward contracts to hedge our foreign currency exchange risk. To
the extent that these hedges qualify under U.S. GAAP, the amount of gain or loss is deferred in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (AOCI) until the related sale occurs. Also, we are subject to foreign currency gains or losses
from embedded derivatives on backlog denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of our operating
companies or its customer. Gains and losses on forward contracts, embedded derivatives, and revaluation of assets and
liabilities denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company for the three month period
ended April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, are as follows:

Three Months Ended
(In thousands)
April 30, May 1,
2010 2009
Forward foreign currency contracts  gain (loss) $ (796) $ 1,834
Forward foreign currency contracts reclassified
from AOCI  gain (loss) 2,338 (5,564)
Embedded derivatives  (loss) (775) (2,020)
Revaluation of monetary assets/liabilities gain 534 6,065
Total $ 1,301 $ 315
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Six Month Period Ended April 30, 2010, Compared with Six Month Period Ended May 1, 2009

Sales for the first six months increased 8.6% over the prior-year period. Sales by segment were as follows:

(In thousands)

Incr./(Decr.) Six Months Ended
from prior April 30, May 1,
year period 2010 2009
Avionics & Controls 24.0% $ 368,976 $ 297,579
Sensors & Systems (9.5)% 155,088 171,310
Advanced Materials 1.3% 202,916 200,330
Total Net Sales $ 726,980 $ 669,219

The 24.0% increase in sales of Avionics & Controls was principally due to strong sales at our avionics systems and
interface technologies operations and $15.2 million in incremental sales from the Racal Acoustics acquisition
completed in the first fiscal quarter of 2009. Avionics systems sales increases were mainly due to higher sales of
cockpit systems for military aviation. The increase in sales at our interface technologies operations were due to higher
sales of custom input systems for casino gaming machines. These increases were partially offset by lower control
systems sales due to the downturn in commercial aviation.

The 9.5% decrease in sales of Sensors & Systems mainly reflected lower OEM sales of temperature sensors and
power systems devices reflecting the downturn in commercial aviation and in particular business jets. These decreases
were partially offset by higher sales of aftermarket sales of certain sensors for defense applications and commercial
aircraft retrofits and the effect of exchange rates at our non-U.S. operations. Sales in the first six months of fiscal 2010
reflected a stronger pound sterling and euro relative to the U.S. dollar. The average exchange rate from the pound
sterling to the U.S. dollar increased from 1.48 in the first six months of 2009 to 1.57 in the first six months of 2010.
The average exchange rate from the euro to the U.S. dollar increased from 1.31 in the first six months of 2009 to 1.40
in the first six months of 2010. Subsequent to the close of Esterline s second fiscal quarter of 2010, there has been a
dramatic weakening of the pound sterling and euro against the U.S. dollar.

The 1.3% increase in sales of Advanced Materials principally reflected higher sales of flare countermeasure devices at
our U.K. operation, partially offset by lower sales of combustible ordnance, thermally engineered components, and
elastomer components.

Overall, gross margin as a percentage of sales was 32.2% and 32.1% for the first six months of fiscal 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Avionics & Controls segment gross margin was 33.8% and 34.2% for the first six months of 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The decrease in Avionics & Controls segment gross margin mainly reflected sales mix and a lower
recovery of fixed costs at our control systems operations. These decreases were partially offset by increased gross
margin at our avionics systems and interface technologies operations, as well as incremental gross margin from the
Racal Acoustics acquisition.
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Sensors & Systems segment gross margin was 33.9% for both the first six months of 2010 and 2009, reflecting lower
gross margin at our advanced sensors operations and higher gross margin at our power systems operations. The
decrease in gross margin at our advanced sensors operations was due to a lower recovery of fixed costs and
competitive pricing pressures. Additionally, gross margin in the prior-year period benefited from retroactive price
agreements. The increase in power systems operations gross margin principally reflected sales of power systems for
military applications with a higher gross margin and cost control.

Advanced Materials segment gross margin was 27.8% for the first six months of 2010 compared to 27.4% for the
same period one year ago. The increase in Advanced Materials gross margin principally reflected improved gross
margins at our U.K. flare operation, due to higher sales and an improved recovery of fixed costs. Additionally, gross
margin at our engineered materials operations increased due to higher sales of engineered materials for defense
applications and improved cost control. These increases were partially offset by lower gross margin at our
combustible ordnance operation due to enhanced inspection requirements on certain mortar increments. In addition,
gross margin was impacted by lower pricing options under a certain combustible ordnance contract with the U.S.
government.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (which include corporate expenses) totaled $127.6 million, or 17.6% of
sales, and $114.3 million, or 17.1% of sales, for the first six months of 2010 and 2009, respectively. The increase in
selling, general and administrative expense principally reflected incremental selling, general and administrative
expense from the acquisition of Racal Acoustics and NMC and the effect of exchange rates on operating expenses at
our non-U.S. operations.

Research, development and engineering spending was $35.5 million, or 4.9% of sales, for the first six months of 2010
compared with $35.7 million, or 5.3% of sales, for the first six months of 2009. Fiscal 2010 research, development
and engineering spending is expected to be approximately 5.0% of sales.

Segment earnings (operating earnings excluding corporate expenses and other income or expense) for the first six
months of 2010 totaled $87.5 million, or 12.0% of sales, compared with $80.6 million, or 12.1% of sales, for the first
six months in 2009.

Avionics & Controls segment earnings were $47.9 million, or 13.0% of sales, in the first six months of 2010 and
$36.2 million, or 12.2% of sales, in the first six months of 2009, principally reflecting higher earnings of our avionics
systems operation on increased sales volume and gross profit on our integrated cockpit for the T-6B military trainer
and a military transport cockpit retrofit and lower research, engineering and development. Additionally, earnings of
our technology interface systems operations were strong compared with the prior-year period due to higher sales and
improved profitability of our custom input systems for casino gaming machines. These increases were partially offset
by lower earnings from our control systems, where we incurred $1.3 million in lease termination costs resulting from
a facilities move, and our communication systems operations. In addition, gross profit at our control systems
operations
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decreased from the prior-year period due to a lower recovery of fixed overhead costs in the current year.

Sensors & Systems segment earnings were $13.8 million, or 8.9% of sales, for the first six months of 2010 compared
with $20.2 million, or 11.8% of sales, for the first six months of 2009. The decrease in segment earnings principally
reflects lower sales and gross margins at our temperature and pressure sensor operations and start-up costs incurred to
set up a manufacturing operation in Mexico. The prior-year period benefited from retroactive pricing adjustments.
Power systems earnings were impacted by lower sales, particularly from business jets, resulting in a lower recovery of
costs. These decreases were partially offset by improved cost control.

Advanced Materials segment earnings were $25.9 million, or 12.7% of sales, for the first six months of 2010
compared with $24.3 million, or 12.1% of sales, for the first six months of 2009, principally reflecting strong earnings
at our U.K. flare countermeasure operation, partially offset by lower sales and gross profits at our combustible
ordnance operations and engineered materials operations.

On January 26, 2009, we acquired Racal Acoustics for £122.6 million or $171.3 million. Racal Acoustics develops
and manufactures high technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics
market segment. The acquisition was funded with cash proceeds from the sale of U.K.-based Muirhead and Traxsys
and our line of credit. To facilitate the acquisition of Racal Acoustics, we executed a $159.7 million U.S.
dollar-denominated intercompany loan with a wholly owned subsidiary, for which its functional currency is the pound
sterling. Due to our holding of pounds sterling to fund the acquisition during a period of foreign exchange volatility,
we incurred a $7.9 million foreign currency transaction loss in January 2009, which was recorded in other expense.

Interest expense for the first six months of 2010 was $15.3 million compared with $14.3 million for the first six
months of 2009, reflecting higher borrowings during most of the first six months of 2010.

The effective income tax rate for the first six months of 2010 was 22.9% (before a $0.5 million discrete tax expense)
compared with 14.2% (before a $0.3 million discrete tax expense) for the prior-year period. The $0.5 million tax
expense in the first six months of 2010 was related mainly to tax law changes in France. The $0.3 million tax expense
in the first six months of 2009 was the result of three events. The first event was a $2.0 million tax benefit for the
reduction of previously recorded withholding tax liabilities as a result of the enactment of a U.S.-Canadian tax treaty.
The second event was the recording of a $1.6 million tax expense as a result of accruing a penalty due to a
development with regard to certain foreign tax laws. The third event was a $0.7 million expense resulting from the
reversal of previously recorded tax benefits associated with the implementation of CMC s SADI program. The
effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the first six months of 2010 and 2009, as both years benefited from
various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense deductions.
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It is reasonably possible that within our next fiscal quarter, a previously recorded $7.1 million liability for
unrecognized foreign tax benefits associated with losses on the disposition of assets could decrease as a result of the
expiration of a statute of limitations.

To the extent that sales are transacted in a currency other than the functional currency of the operating unit, we are
subject to foreign currency fluctuation risk. We use forward contracts to hedge our foreign currency exchange risk. To
the extent that these hedges qualify under U.S. GAAP, the amount of gain or loss is deferred in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (AOCI) until the related sale occurs. Also, we are subject to foreign currency gains or losses
from embedded derivatives on backlog denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of our operating
companies or its customer. Gains and losses on forward contracts, embedded derivatives, and revaluation of assets and
liabilities denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company for the six month period ended
April 30, 2010, and May 1, 2009, are as follows:

(In thousands) Six Months Ended
April 30, May 1,
2010 2009

Forward foreign currency contracts  (loss) $ (1,197 $  (1,850)
Forward foreign currency contracts reclassified

from AOCI gain (loss) 4,326 (10,989)
Embedded derivatives (loss) (1,202) (L,777)
Revaluation of monetary assets/liabilities  (loss) (256) (2,990)

Total $ 1,671 $ (17,606)

New orders for the first six months of 2010 were $743.3 million compared with $676.3 million for the same period in
2009. The increase in new orders principally reflects the effect of exchange rates, the timing of receiving orders and
an increase in commercial aviation and defense demand. Backlog was $1.1 billion at April 30, 2010, May 1, 2009, and
at October 30, 2009.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents at April 30, 2010, totaled $223.7 million, an increase of $46.9 million from

October 30, 2009. Net working capital increased to $556.8 million at April 30, 2010, from $502.4 million at

October 30, 2009. Sources and uses of cash flows from operating activities principally consist of cash received from
the sale of products and cash payments for material, labor and operating expenses. Cash flows provided by operating
activities were $71.7 million and $40.3 million in the first six months of 2010 and 2009, respectively, reflecting
increased income from continuing operations and advanced payments on long-term contracts and decreased payments
for inventory and income taxes.

Cash flows used by investing activities were $26.3 million and $208.4 million in the first six months of 2010 and
20009, respectively. Cash flows used by investing activities in the first six months of 2010 primarily reflected cash paid
for capital expenditures. Cash flows used by investing activities in the prior-year period included approximately
$250.8 million for the acquisitions of NMC and Racal Acoustics, and $20.9 million in purchases of capital assets,
partially offset by proceeds from the sale of Muirhead and Traxsys of $62.9 million.

Cash flows provided by financing activities were $5.9 million and $122.3 million in the first six months of 2010 and
2009, respectively. The decrease principally reflected a $125.0 million term loan due in 2012 to finance the Racal
Acoustics acquisition, and $2.7 million in repayments on our GBP term loan in the prior-year period.

On December 15, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NMC Group, Inc. (NMC) for
approximately $90.1 million in cash, including acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded from existing cash.

On January 26, 2009, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Racal Acoustics Global Ltd. (Racal
Acoustics) for approximately $171.3 million in cash, including acquisition costs. Racal Acoustics develops and
manufactures high technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics segment.
The acquisition was funded from proceeds from the sale of Muirhead and Traxsys and our credit facility.

Capital expenditures, consisting of machinery, equipment and computers, are anticipated to be approximately

$50.0 million during fiscal 2010, compared to $87.4 million expended in fiscal 2009. Capital expenditures for fiscal
2009 included $28.2 million under capitalized lease obligations related to our newly constructed facility for an
avionics controls operation and a facility expansion for an interface technologies facility. Capital expenditures for the
first six months of fiscal 2010 totaled $33.7 million, primarily for machinery and equipment, building, construction in
process, and enhancements to information systems. Capital expenditures for the first six months of fiscal 2010
included $8.1 million under capitalized lease obligations for our newly constructed avionics controls facility and
facility expansion noted above.

In April 2009, we amended the credit facility to provide for a $125.0 million term loan. The Company used the
proceeds from the loan to repay its outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and provide enhanced
liquidity. Borrowings under the U.S. term loan
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facility bear interest at a rate equal to either: (a) the LIBOR rate plus 2.50% or (b) the Base Rate (defined as the higher
of Wachovia Bank, National Association s prime rate and the Federal funds rate plus 0.50%) plus 1.50%. The loan is
accruing interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR plus 2.5% and was 2.77% on April 30, 2010. The principal

amount of the U.S. term loan facility is payable quarterly commencing on March 31, 2010, the first four payments

equal to 1.25% of the original loan balance, the following four payments equal to 2.50%, with a final payment equal

to 85.00% on March 13, 2012.

Total debt at April 30, 2010, was $541.3 million and consisted of $175.0 million of Senior Notes due in 2017,
$176.3 million of Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2013, $123.4 million under our U.S. term loan, $2.0 million of
deferred gain on a terminated interest rate swap, $44.1 million under capital lease obligations and $20.5 million under

our credit facility and various foreign currency debt agreements and other debt agreements.

We believe cash on hand and funds generated from operations are adequate to service operating cash requirements and
capital expenditures through April 2011.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or
our future financial performance. In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as
anticipate,  believe, continue, could, estimate, expect, intend, may, might, plan, potential,
negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including the risk factors set forth in Forward-Looking Statements
and Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 30, 2009, that may cause our
or the industry s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. You should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, performance or achievements. Given
these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements included or incorporated by reference into this report are made only as of the date hereof.
We do not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to update any such statements or to publicly announce the
results of any revisions to any such statements to reflect future events or developments.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There have been no significant changes in our exposure to market risk during the first six months of fiscal 2010. A
discussion of our exposure to market risk is provided in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 30, 2009.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive and financial officers evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of April 30, 2010. Based upon that evaluation, they
concluded as of April 30, 2010, that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information
we are required to disclose in the reports that we file under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. In addition, our
principal executive and financial officers concluded as of April 30, 2010, that our disclosure controls and procedures
are also effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including to our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

During the time period covered by this report, there were no significant changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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Item 1.

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that

PARTII OTHER INFORMATION

Legal Proceedings

adequate reserves for these liabilities have been made and that there is no litigation pending that could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Item 6.

Exhibits

10.1

11

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

Amendment No. 8 to Credit Agreement and Consent between Esterline
Technologies Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
dated as of April 30, 2010.

Schedule setting forth computation of basic and diluted earnings per
common share for the three and six month periods ended April 30, 2010,
and May 1, 2009.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

Certification (of R. Bradley Lawrence) pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.

Certification (of Robert D. George) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: June 3, 2010

ESTERLINE TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Robert D. George
Robert D. George
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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